
H E R M I S T O N 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

Regular Meeting June 8, 2016 

A G E N D A 
~ .. ~  .. ~ .. ~ .. ~ .. ~  .. ~ .. ~ .. ~ .. ~  .. ~ .. ~ .. ~ .. ~  .. ~ .. ~ .. ~ .. ~ . .. ~ .. ~ .. ~ .. ~  .. ~ .. ~ .. ~ .. ~  .. ~ .. ~ .. ~ 

1. CALL TO ORDER - 7:00 p.m.

2. MINUTES of the May 11, 2016 regular planning commission meeting.

3. HEARING- at or after 7:00PM.
The hearing is to consider a request from the City of Hermiston for a variance from §157.026 (D)(1) of 
the Hermiston Code of Ordinances which establishes front yard setback requirements in a (R-2) Duplex 
Residential zone and from §157.137 which establishes building projection requirements.  The applicant 
proposes to construct an 11,000 square foot building with a two foot front yard setback and with an 
architectural feature which will project more than two feet into the required yard.  The Planning 
Commission will also consider a request for a conditional use permit to allow the proposed building to 
be used as a community center located in a (R-2) zone.  The property is described as 4N2811BC Tax 
Lots 13900 and 13901 and 4N2811CB Tax Lot 1700 and is located at 255 NE 2nd St. 

1) Declaration of potential conflict of interest
2) Hearing Guidelines
3) Open hearing
4) Public testimony (people wishing to speak are asked to come to the microphone and state
 their name and mailing addresses) 

a. Proponents
b. Opponents

5) Close hearing
6) Findings of Fact

Action – Motion to Approve
7) Decision

Action – Motion to Approve

4. NEW BUSINESS

5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

6. PLANNER COMMENTS AND UNSCHEDULED COMMUNICATIONS

A. Planner comments 
B. Unscheduled communications and general discussion 

7. ADJOURN
Minutes May 11, 2016 
Staff Report Harkenrider Center 
Exhibit A Cond Use Findings 
Exhibit B Variance Findings 
Property Map 
Site Plan 5-24-16 
Schematic Elevations 
Schematic Floor Plan 
Cond Use Permit Application 
Major Variance Application 
Site Plan 3-15-16 
Lease  



HERMISTON PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

Regular Meeting                                         May 11, 2016
   
Chairman Saylor called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM.  Commissioners Doherty, Hamm, Flaiz, Erz, 
Rebman and Caplinger were present.  Commissioners Medelez and Fialka were absent.  
 
Minutes 
Minutes of the April 13, 2016 Planning Commission meeting were unanimously approved.  
 
New Business 
The planning commission is holding a hearing to consider a request for a major variance.  The request must 
be approved by the planning commission subject to the criteria established in §155.50 of the Hermiston 
Code of Ordinances.  The applicant wishes to obtain a variance from §155.35 (C) of the Hermiston Code of 
Ordinances which establishes location requirements and an 8 foot height limit of free standing signs in a R-1 
Single Family Residential zone.  The applicant is requesting that the City allow a sign 14 feet 8 inches in 
height be placed on the property. The property is described as 4N 28 15BA Tax Lot 901 and is located at 
855 W Highland Ave. The applicant is Hermiston Seventh Day Adventist Church.  

 
Chairman Saylor asked if any commissioners had a conflict of interest.   Commissioner Flaiz stepped down. 
Chairman Saylor read the following guidelines: 

 
a. The applicable substantive criteria relied upon by the City in rendering the decision to grant 

the variance are contained in §155.50 of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances. 
 

b. Testimony and evidence must be directed toward the criteria described above or other criteria 
in the comprehensive plan or land use regulations which the person believes apply to the 
decision. 

 
c. Failure to raise an issue by the close of the record at or following the hearing, in person or by 

letter, precludes appeal to the Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA) or the city council based 
on that issue. 

 
d. Failure to raise an issue with sufficient specificity to afford the decision maker and the 

parties an opportunity to respond to that issue precludes appeal to LUBA or the city council 
based on that issue. 

 
e. Failure to raise constitutional or other issues relating to proposed conditions of approval with 

sufficient specificity to allow the local government or its designee to respond to the issue 
precludes an action for damages in circuit court. 

 
f. Prior to the conclusion of the evidentiary hearing, any participant may request an opportunity 

to present additional evidence, arguments or testimony regarding the application.  The 
planning commission shall grant such a request by continuing the public hearing pursuant to 
ORS 197.763(6)(B) or leaving the record open for additional written evidence, arguments or 
testimony pursuant to ORS 197.763(6)(C). 

 
For this hearing, the process begins with the staff report, followed by testimony from the applicants and any 
other supporters of the application.  This will be followed by opponents to the application.  Finally, a 
rebuttal by the applicant will be allowed.  The public hearing portion of the procedure will then be closed, 
and the planning commission will consider the information and testimony received and may render a 
decision. 



Hermiston Planning Commission      Page 2 of 3                                                             May 11, 2016 
 

 

 
City Planner Spencer presented the staff report, stating that Finding # 8 should be removed and #9 
renumbered to #8. 

 
Findings of Fact 

 
1. The property is approximately 300 feet in width on a minor arterial.  The higher sign height will 

grant greater visibility.  
 

2. There are several similar signs on other properties in low density residential zones which exceed the 
height limitation. 
 

3. The applicant has noted that West Park Elementary, First Christian Church, and the Hermiston High 
School are all within 1000 feet of the proposed sign, within a low density residential zone, and 
already have signs in excess of 8 feet in height. 
 

4. In addition to the signs in relatively close proximity, noted in Finding #4, Rocky Heights 
Elementary, Sandstone Middle School, Armand Larive Middle School, and Desert View 
Elementary also have signs in excess of 8 feet in height. 
 

5. The extra height will keep the LED messages out of the sightline of drivers approaching the sign at 
night, creating a safer driver environment. 
 

6. Allowing extra height for the sign will better protect the investment in the sign by preventing it 
from being slapped or vandalized by passing pedestrians. 
 

7. Placing the sign at a higher height will prevent children from hiding behind it during VBS activities 
during the summer. 
 

8. The applicant received a permit to build a sign at 14 feet in height but later had to modify the design 
at the direction of the building department. 

 
Staff Recommendation 

The planning commission may choose to approve or deny the variance requested by the Seventh Day 
Adventist Church.  The applicant notes that several other property owners have signs as high or higher than 
the proposed sign and they wish to exercise a similar property right.  Should the planning commission 
choose to approve the variance request, staff recommends the following condition be placed upon the 
placement and operation of the sign: 
 

1. The Planning Commission will review operation of the sign at the November 9, 2016 Planning 
Commission meeting to consider usage restrictions.  

 
Testimony 
Proponents: Louis Hanson 2110 S HWY 395 Hermiston- Mr. Hanson reviewed the timeline of applying for 
the permit and installing the sign.  He feels the conditions are too subjective.  
Opponents: None present. 

Chairman Saylor closed the hearing at 7:25pm. 



Hermiston Planning Commission     Page 3 of 3           May 11, 2016 

Commissioner Hamm moved and Commissioner Erz seconded to approve the findings as amended.  Motion 
passed unanimously.  Commissioner Caplinger moved and Commissioner Hamm seconded to approve the 
Variance application subject to the revised condition of approval.  Motion passed unanimously. 

Commissioner Flaiz returned to her seat. 

New Business 
City staff requests that the planning commission interpret an ambiguous portion of the sign code in Chapter 
155 of the municipal code.   City Planner Spencer presented the staff report.  A citizen complaint was 
received for sign posts placed on property at 699 W. Joseph Ave in November of 2015.  In April of 2016, a 
sign was installed that was estimated 14 square feet in area.  A second complaint was received regarding the 
size of the sign.   The City wrote a letter to the property owner informing them of the sign code.  In reading 
the sign code it was noted that Residential Identification Sign was exempt from the sign code.  The property 
owner requested the definition of a Residential Identification Sign. There is no definition in the code.  If the 
erected sign meets this definition than it is a legal sign.  If it is determined the sign is not exempt, then the 
owner will need to apply for a variance.   

Commissioners discussed the intent of the original language in the sign ordinance.  Commissioner Doherty 
moved and Commissioner Caplinger seconded that the sign is not an exempt residential identification sign 
under 155.17 (J).  Motion passed with Commissioner Rebman and Commissioner Flaiz opposing the 
motion.  

Planner Comments and Unscheduled Communications 
A five to seven member board for festival street design will be needed in July.  

The EOTEC open house is Friday, May 13.  

Meeting adjourned at 8:05PM. 



To: Planning Commission 
From: Clinton Spencer, City Planner 
Subject: Conditional Use and Variance Request – 255 NE 2nd Street - City of Hermiston 
Date: June 1, 2016 

Background 

The City of Hermiston has received a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) to 
construct a new senior center on land located at 255 NE 2nd Street.  The existing senior center is 
located at 435 W Orchard Ave.  The existing senior center is part of the Umatilla County 
Fairgrounds and must be relocated concurrently with the relocation of the fairgrounds to 
facilities off E Airport Road.  The existing senior center is not a city operated facility but does 
provide a broad public service which the city wishes to support and encourage.  In order to 
further support and encourage the provision of this service, the city has pledged financial support 
to the relocation of the senior center and sponsored the application for the CDBG which will 
further fund the new construction. 

The city contracted with Ascent Architecture to assist with the design of the facility, outreach, 
preparation of construction drawings, and preparation of bid documents. 

Figure 1 Vicinity Map 

Planning Department
180 NE 2nd Street 

Hermiston, OR 97838 
Phone: (541)567-5521 
Fax: (541)567-5530 

planning@hermiston.or.us 



The area proposed for the construction of the new senior center (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Harkenrider Center” as designated by the city council) sits upon land previously occupied by 
Armand Larive Middle School.  The school district retains ownership of the building site.  The 
city will lease the property from the school district for thirty years.  The two lots providing 
parking for the center are in city ownership.  The parking lots do not require conditional use 
permits or variances to be used for parking purposes but are included in the application for 
noticing purposes and to provide the required minimum parking for the Harkenrider Center. 

The Harkenrider Center as proposed is an 11,000 square foot, two-story building.  The building 
will have a footprint of 7,200 square feet.  The main floor will be constructed at street grade for 
NE 2nd Street and encompass approximately 7,200 square feet.  There will also be a 3,800 square 
foot daylight basement under a portion of the main floor.  In order to best facilitate the safe 
movement of seniors from the parking lot to the building entrance, and the loading and unloading 
of seniors from the facility’s van, the city is proposing to partially close NE 2nd Street to traffic 
and build a covered loading/unloading area in the intersection of NE 2nd Street and E Ridgeway 
Ave.  The loading/unloading area (referred to as a “porte cochere” on the site plan) will include 
a concrete refuge island in the street right-of-way.  The distance from the island to the east curb 
line for NE 2nd Street will be 25 feet, which is adequate to provide two 12-foot travel lanes 
allowing for continued two-way traffic flow.  The city engineer has reviewed the design and 
determined it will function safely with the following amendments: 

• Narrow the concrete island by about 4 feet so that you have two 12 foot travel lanes and a
2-foot shoulder on each side.

• Striping on both the north and south ends of the island to delineate the traffic flow; yield
markings on the south end and median/lane split markings on the north

• Delineate the on-street parking spaces so that it is clear where no parking is allowed
• Additional signage should be added

Figure 2 Site Plan 



The site plan indicates a planned loading and delivery area adjacent to the south wall of the 
building.  However, no driveway is shown for this entrance.  Staff recommends the planning 
commission require a driveway to be shown and constructed for the delivery dock. 

Parking will be located on the east side of NE 2nd Street and encompass existing parking 
previously used by the old Armand Larive Middle School and the public parking lot north of the 
public library.  The public library and building department are both located within the 
Downtown Commercial Overlay zone and may use the public parking lots on the south side of E 
Gladys and on-street parking which leaves the existing parking south of E Ridgeway Ave to be 
reallocated to the Harkenrider Center. 

Calculating the required parking for the Harkenrider Center involves interpreting the city’s 
parking standards in §157.175.  The building will have a mix of uses but is closest to a church 
(one space per four seats), auditorium (one space per four seats), or club/lodge (combined spaces 
to meet the requirements of each use).  Based upon the rated occupancy of the building 
calculated by the building official, the Harkenrider Center can accommodate 250 people in the 
main hall.  If 250 people can use the facility during a major event, then it is reasonable to 
calculate the parking requirement as one space per four rated occupants or 250/4 or 62.5 as the 
minimum parking requirement.  Sixty-four spaces are provided across NE 2nd Street in the 
existing city lots with some restriping required.  Per §157.178(E) of the Hermiston Code of 
Ordinances, required off-street parking spaces may be located off the development site but must 
be within 500 feet of the use.  All of the required parking is proposed to be located within 500 
feet of the development site.  The planning commission may wish to discuss the provisions of 
§157.179(B) which requires parking areas adjacent to residential uses to be screened with a sight
obscuring fence.  To meet the strict application of this provision, a six foot sight obscuring fence 
should be installed between the east line of the upper parking lot and the adjacent apartments. 
However, the location of the apartment building directly on the lot line would effectively block 
all west facing windows from any use.  Staff recommends the planning commission waive this 
requirement. 



Figure 3 Parking Lot Layout 

The property proposed for the Harkenrider Center building lies within the city’s Duplex 
Residential (R-2) zone.  Per §157.026(B)(1) of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances, a community 
building is a conditional use in the R-2 zone.  A senior center itself is not a defined use in the 
zoning code, but a senior center encompasses many of the uses served by a community building 
and is considered a similar use.  As a conditional use, a community building must receive 
approval from the planning commission subject to the provisions of the city’s conditional use 
permit standards in §157.205 through §157.210. 

The proposed Harkenrider Center will be built two feet from the property line shared with NE 2nd 
Street.  Approval of the building in this location requires a variance from §157.026(D)(1) which 
establishes the minimum front yard setback of 20 feet.  The proposed Harkenrider Center also 
has a proposed porte cochere referred to as a “loading/unloading area” in the staff report which 
extends into the right-of-way for NE 2nd Street.  Construction of the loading/unloading area over 
the right-of-way requires a variance from §157.137 which establishes that buildings projections 
may extend no more than 2 feet into a required yard or open space.  Variances to development 
standards must be approved by the planning commission subject to the variance provisions 
contained in §157.225 of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances. 



 

 
Figure 4 Building Layout 

 

Figure 5 Elevation Showing Encroachment into Right-of-Way 

 

 



There are additional parking lot and street improvements planned for the site which are not 
directly tied to the conditional use permit but are included in this report for the planning 
commission’s reference.  The parking lot improvements will be part of the planned municipal 
parking lot upgrades in the urban renewal plan.  The planned festival street on NE 2nd Street 
between E Main and E Gladys will also extend north an extra half block to the senior center 
entrance.  Money for planning and design work is budgeted for the 2016-17 fiscal year.  
Construction is planned for the 2017-18 fiscal year.  The city has committed $200,000 for 
parking lot upgrades and the remaining funds will be from urban renewal dollars through a bond 
issuance.  The enhanced parking lot and street design will add several features to enhance safety. 
A cul-de-sac will be added for better circulation to the porte cochere.  Removable bollards will 
close the street to daily through traffic but allow continued fire and life safety access.  Additional 
parking will be added on the street.  Street curbs will be reconstructed and relocated to narrow 
the street width, slowing traffic.  Additional crosswalks will be installed.  New landscaping will 
be added.  These improvements are not necessary for the minimum code requirements for the 
Harkenrider Center, but will provide a better community facility as funds become available 
outside the CDBG funding window. 

Figure 6 Parking Lot Enhancements 



Public notice requirements for the property have been met as follows: 

• Notice of public hearing published in Hermiston Herald on May 25, 2016
• Notice of proposed land use action posted on property on May 25, 2016
• Notice of public hearing provided by direct mail to all property owners within 300 feet on

May 25, 2016

Requirements For Granting a Conditional Use Permit 

§157.208 of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances provides the method and approval criteria
necessary for approving or denying a conditional use.  The specific findings required by this 
section are: 

1. The proposal is in conformance with the comprehensive plan and zoning code.
2. The property is adequate in size and shape to accommodate the proposed use, together

with all other zoning requirements and any additional conditions imposed by the planning
commission.

3. Public facilities are of adequate size and quality to serve the proposed use.
4. The proposed use will prove reasonably compatible with surrounding properties.

In granting a conditional use permit, the planning commission may impose, in addition to those 
standards and requirements expressly specified by the zoning code, any additional conditions 
they consider necessary to protect the best interests of the surrounding property or the city as a 
whole.  These conditions may include increasing the required lot size or yard dimensions; 
limiting the height of buildings; controlling the location and number of off-street parking and 
loading spaces required; limiting the number, size and location of signs; requiring screening and 
landscaping to protect adjacent property and any other condition deemed necessary by the 
commission. 

Requirements For Granting a Variance 

The specific criteria relied upon by the planning commission are contained in §157.225(A)(1) of 
the Hermiston Code of Ordinances.  In granting a variance, the applicant must demonstrate that 
all of the following criteria have been met: 

1. Exceptional or extraordinary conditions apply to the property that do not apply generally
to other properties in the same zone or vicinity, which conditions are a result of lot size,
shape, topography or other circumstances over which the applicant has no control.

2. The variance is necessary for the preservation of a property right of the applicant
substantially the same as possessed by owners of other property in the same zone or
vicinity.

3. The authorization of the variance shall not be materially detrimental to the purposes of
the zoning ordinance, be injurious to property in the zone or vicinity in which the
property is located, or be otherwise detrimental to the objectives of any development
patterns or policy.

4. It is impossible to maintain the zoning ordinance and at the same time, build, erect or use
the structure.



5. The variance requested is the minimum variance from the provisions and standards of the
zoning ordinance which will alleviate the hardship.

The granting or denial of a conditional use permit or variance will not affect the requirements of 
the City of Hermiston to comply with building, plumbing and electrical codes, other ordinances, 
statutory or regulatory compliance issues.   

Findings of Fact 

Ascent Architecture has prepared findings of fact supporting the conditional use permit and 
variance requests.  The full burden of proof is attached to this report.  The burden of proof for the 
conditional use permit, containing six pages of evidence and findings prepared by Ascent 
Architecture is attached as Exhibit A.  The burden of proof for the two variance requests, 
containing three pages of evidence and findings prepared by Ascent Architecture is attached as 
Exhibit B.  Staff recommends the planning commission review the findings and consider any 
public testimony submitted as part of the hearing.  The planning commission may wish to amend 
the findings as needed  

Draft Conditions of Approval 

1. The lower parking lot shall be striped as shown on the site plan prior to occupancy.
2. The site plan shall be revised to show the access and curb cut design for the

loading/delivery area adjacent to the south wall of the building.
3. The design for the concrete island and NE 2nd Street around the porte cochere shall be

amended as follows:
• Narrow the concrete island by 4 feet so that there are two 12 foot travel lanes and

a 2-foot shoulder on each side.
• Striping on both the north and south ends of the island to delineate the traffic

flow; yield markings on the south end and median/lane split markings on the
north

• Delineate the on-street parking spaces so that it is clear where no parking is
allowed

• Additional signage shall be added
4. The city shall comply with §92.12 of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances which relates to

the control of blowing dust, during all phases of construction.
5. All stormwater shall be retained on-site in drainage areas as shown on the site plan.
6. Bicycle parking shall be installed in accordance with §157.150(L) of the Hermiston Code

of Ordinances.
7. All signage shall comply with Chapter 155 of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances.
8. The applicant shall work with the Fire Marshall prior to issuance of a building permit.

No building permit shall be issued until the Fire Marshall has approved the site plan.
9. Landscaping shall be installed in all areas as shown on the site plan.  Final determination

of specific plantings shall be submitted to the city prior to occupancy.
10. A security plan shall be submitted to the city police department for review and comment

prior to issuance of a building permit.
11. Exterior site and parking lot lighting shall be designed to avoid interference with adjacent

properties.



Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends that the planning commission consider the design of the Harkenrider Center, 
the public testimony presented at the hearing, and the evidence presented by Ascent Architecture 
and Parks and Recreation staff.  After the consideration of the evidence, staff recommends that 
the planning commission make the following motions: 

1. Approve the findings of fact as prepared by Ascent Architecture for the conditional use
permit and variance requests.

2. Approve a variance from the 20 foot front yard setback requirement in the R-2 zone and
approving a two foot front yard setback.

3. Approve a variance from the two foot yard encroachment allowance and allow the
construction of a porte cochere or covered loading/unloading area within the right-of-
way for NE 2nd Street.

4. Approve a conditional use permit for the construction of a new senior center at 255 NE
2nd Street subject to the conditions of approval.





















E Ridgeway Ave

E Gladys Ave

US
 H

wy
 39

5

NE
 2n

d S
t

4N2811BC04500

4N2811BC13900

4N2811BC13901
4N2811CB016004N2811CB01700

4N2811CB01800

4N2811CB01900
4N2811CB02000

4N2811CB021004N2811CB02300

4N2811CB02400

4N2811CB02500

4N2811CB02600
4N2811CB02700

4N2811CB028004N2811CB02900
4N2811CB03000

4N2811CB03200 4N2811CB03300 4N2811CB04000

4N2811CB04200
4N2811CB04301

4N2811CB04500

4N2811CB04700
4N2811CB04701

4N2811CB05000

4N2811CB05100

Legend
Area of Proposed Conditional Use and Variance
Property Line
City Limits

0 100 20050
Feet ±



D
at

e:
Pr

oj
ec

t:
5/

24
/2

01
6

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

ITE
 P

LA
N

H
A

RK
EN

RI
D

ER
 C

EN
TE

R
C

ITY
 O

F 
H

ER
M

IS
TO

N
15

04
0

92
0 

N
W

 B
on

d 
St

. S
ui

te
 2

04

Be
nd

, O
re

go
n 

97
70

3

t |
 5

41
-6

47
-5

67
5

e|
 in

fo
@

as
ce

nt
ar

ch
.c

om
©

 2
01

6 
A

SC
EN

T 
A

RC
H

ITE
C

TU
RE

 &
 IN

TE
RI

O
RS

25
26

27
28

29
30

31
32

33
34

35
36

13
14

15
16

17
18

19
20

21
22

23
24

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11
12

28

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19

20
21

22
23

24
25

26

10'-0"
W

A
TER

EA
SEM

EN
T

19
'-0

"
UT

IL
ITY

EA
SE

M
EN

T

70
.3

68
'

2' 89.7'182.923' 
TO WEST

PROPERTY
LINE

20'

80.794'

21
'

9'
8'

9'

20'

20
' T

YP

9' TYP.

9'
 T

YP 20' TYP25
' M

IN

25' MIN

9'
 T

YP 20' TYP

341.59'

EXISTING FIRE
HYDRANT

TO REMAIN

EXISTING ARCH TO REMAIN

TRASH/RECYCLING
STORAGE

PORTE
COCHERE

RETAINING WALL

WALK DOWN TO
BASEMENT LEVEL BICYCLE PARKING

(8) STALLS

BASEMENT
LEVEL PATIO

EAST RIDGEWAY
AVENUE

ALLEY

N
O

RT
HE

A
ST

2N
D 

ST
RE

ET

EXISTING PARKING LOT
(NO WORK)ONE W

AY

LOADING/
DELIVERIES

SHED

FIRST UNITED
METHODIST
CHURCH

DECK

CITY BLDG.
DEPT.

PUBLIC LIBRARY

STORM WATER
BASIN

BUILDING
PROPOSED

27

EXISTING CURB CUT

EXISTING CURB CUT

N SCALE: 1"   = 40' 1PROPOSED SITE PLAN
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION



D
at

e:
Pr

oj
ec

t:
5/

23
/2

01
6

SC
H

EM
A

TIC
 E

LE
V

A
TIO

N
S

H
A

RK
EN

RI
D

ER
 C

EN
TE

R
C

ITY
 O

F 
H

ER
M

IS
TO

N
15

04
0

92
0 

N
W

 B
on

d 
St

. S
ui

te
 2

04

Be
nd

, O
re

go
n 

97
70

3

t |
 5

41
-6

47
-5

67
5

e|
 in

fo
@

as
ce

nt
ar

ch
.c

om
©

 2
01

6 
A

SC
EN

T 
A

RC
H

ITE
C

TU
RE

 &
 IN

TE
RI

O
RS

BOARD &
BATTEN SIDING

ASHPALT SHINGLE SIDING

COLUMNS: ENGINEERED
STONE BASE WITH HEAVY

TIMBER POSTS

COLUMNS: ENGINEERED
STONE BASE WITH HEAVY

TIMBER POSTS

VINYL WINDOWS

LAP SIDING

19'-5 1/2"
22'-7"

PL

BOARD &
BATTEN SIDING

SHINGLE SIDING

LAP SIDING

ASPHALT SHINGLE ROOFING

-12'-0"

0'-0"

22'-7"
19'-5 1/2"

SCALE: 1/16" =    1'-0" 1SCHEMATIC EAST ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/16" =    1'-0" 2SCHEMATIC WEST ELEVATION

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION



D
at

e:
Pr

oj
ec

t:
5/

23
/2

01
6

SC
H

EM
A

TIC
 E

LE
V

A
TIO

N
S

H
A

RK
EN

RI
D

ER
 C

EN
TE

R
C

ITY
 O

F 
H

ER
M

IS
TO

N
15

04
0

92
0 

N
W

 B
on

d 
St

. S
ui

te
 2

04

Be
nd

, O
re

go
n 

97
70

3

t |
 5

41
-6

47
-5

67
5

e|
 in

fo
@

as
ce

nt
ar

ch
.c

om
©

 2
01

6 
A

SC
EN

T 
A

RC
H

ITE
C

TU
RE

 &
 IN

TE
RI

O
RS

ASPHALT SHINGLE ROOFING SHINGLE SIDING

VINYL WINDOWS LAP SIDINGBOARD & BATTEN SIDING

14'-2"

22'-7"
T.O. GABLE

PL

BOARD & BATTEN SIDING

LAP SIDING

VINYL WINDOWS

COLUMNS: ENGINEERED
STONE BASE WITH HEAVY

TIMBER POSTS

SHINGLE SIDING

LINE OF GRADE, SHOWN DASHED
FOR BUILDING ELEVATION CLARITY

20'-8 1/2"

0'-0"

-12'-0"

14'-2"

PL

BOARD & BATTEN SIDING

LAP SIDING

VINYL WINDOWS

COLUMNS: ENGINEERED
STONE BASE WITH HEAVY

TIMBER POSTS

SHINGLE SIDING

LINE OF GRADE, SHOWN DASHED
FOR BUILDING ELEVATION CLARITY

SCALE: 1/16" =    1'-0" 4SCHEMATIC SOUTH ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/16" =    1'-0" 3SCHEMATIC NORTH ELEVATION
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION



D
a

te
:

P
ro

je
c

t:

4
/7

/2
0

1
6

S
C

H
E
M

A
TI

C
 F

LO
O

R
/S

IT
E
 P

LA
N

H
A

R
K

E
N

R
ID

E
R

 C
E
N

TE
R

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 H

E
R

M
IS

TO
N

1
5

0
4

0

9
2

0
 N

W
 B

o
n

d
 S

t.
 S

u
it

e
 2

0
4

B
e

n
d

, 
O

re
g

o
n

 9
7

7
0

3

t 
|

 5
4

1
-6

4
7

-5
6

7
5

e
|

 i
n

fo
@

a
sc

e
n

ta
rc

h
.c

o
m

©
 2

0
1

6
 A

S
C

E
N

T 
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TU
R

E
 &

 I
N

TE
R

IO
R

S

D
O

W
N

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

D
N

 21 x 6 3/4" = 12'-0"

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

1
1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21D
N

 21 x 6 3/4" = 12'-0"

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

1
1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

TRASH ENCLOSURE: METAL POST

WITH WOOD SLATS AND METAL GATE

LOADING AREA

CONCRETE, SLAB ON GRADE

CONCRETE PATIO BELOW

GREAT HALL

3,666 SQ. FT.

OFFICE

301 SQ. FT.

RECEPTION

180 SQ. FT.

VESTIBULE

126 SQ. FT.

ROOM 1

BREAK-OUT

341 SQ. FT.

ROOM 2

BREAK-OUT

341 SQ. FT.

STAIR

159 SQ. FT.

COVERED DECK

629 SQ. FT.

ELEVATOR

59 SQ. FT.

ELEC

16 SQ. FT.

RESTROOM

MEN'S

228 SQ. FT.

RESTROOM

WOMEN'S

228 SQ. FT.

KITCHEN

900 SQ. FT.

FIRE RISER

MECH/JAN/

119 SQ. FT.

I.T.

16 SQ. FT.

STORAGE

132 SQ. FT.

FOOTPRINT

BUILDING

7,116 SQ. FT.

N SCALE: 1/16" =    1'-0" 1
REVISED SCHEMATIC FLOOR PLAN WITH SITE



D
a

te
:

P
ro

je
c

t:

4
/7

/2
0

1
6

S
C

H
E
M

A
TI

C
 B

A
S
E
M

E
N

T 
P

LA
N

H
A

R
K

E
N

R
ID

E
R

 C
E
N

TE
R

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 H

E
R

M
IS

TO
N

1
5

0
4

0

9
2

0
 N

W
 B

o
n

d
 S

t.
 S

u
it

e
 2

0
4

B
e

n
d

, 
O

re
g

o
n

 9
7

7
0

3

t 
|

 5
4

1
-6

4
7

-5
6

7
5

e
|

 i
n

fo
@

a
sc

e
n

ta
rc

h
.c

o
m

©
 2

0
1

6
 A

S
C

E
N

T 
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TU
R

E
 &

 I
N

TE
R

IO
R

S

U
P

 2
1
 x

 6
 3

/4
" 

=
 1

2
'-
0
"

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

1
1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

U
P

 2
1

 x
 6

 3
/4

" 
=

 1
2

'-
0
"

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

1
1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

PATIO

COVERED

630 SQ. FT.

ELEVATOR

59 SQ. FT.ROOM

MACHINE

68 SQ. FT.

STORAGE

3,506 SQ. FT.

PATIO

1,085 SQ. FT.

N SCALE: 1/16" =    1'-0" 1
REVISED SCHEMATIC BASEMENT PLAN















D
at

e:
Pr

oj
ec

t:
3/

15
/2

01
6

SC
H

EM
A

TIC
 S

ITE
 P

LA
N

H
A

RK
EN

RI
D

ER
 C

EN
TE

R
C

ITY
 O

F 
H

ER
M

IS
TO

N
15

04
0

92
0 

N
W

 B
on

d 
St

. S
ui

te
 2

04

Be
nd

, O
re

go
n 

97
70

3

t |
 5

41
-6

47
-5

67
5

e|
 in

fo
@

as
ce

nt
ar

ch
.c

om
©

 2
01

6 
A

SC
EN

T 
A

RC
H

ITE
C

TU
RE

 &
 IN

TE
RI

O
RS

DECORATIVE PAVERS

DECORATIVE PAVERSDECORATIVE PAVERS

RAISED DECORATIVE PAVER ISLAND

DECORATIVE PAVERS

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING ARCH

TRASH/RECYCLING
STORAGE

LOADING AISLE

BASEMENT LEVEL
PATIO

DECORATIVE PAVERS

REMOVABLE
BOLLARD, TYP (4)PORTE COCHERE

PARTIAL HEIGHT
RETAINING WALL

COVERED PATIO

SLOPED SIDEWALK DOWN
TO BASEMENT LEVEL

BOCCE COURT

STORM WATER
BASIN

(2) HORSE
SHOE PITS

CONCRETE SLAB

DRAINAGE BASIN

DRAINAGE BASIN

DRAINAGE BASIN

6

8

10

12

14

12 12

9 9

EAST RIDGEWAY
AVENUE

ALLEY

N
O

RT
HE

A
ST

2N
D 

ST
RE

ET

TOTAL PARKING:
92 STALLS

BUILDING
PROPOSED

N
SCALE: 1"   = 40' 1SCHEMATIC SITE PLAN



I/CH/P&R/Harkenrider  

LEASE OPTION ‐ MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
CITY OF HERMISTON, OREGON, AND HERMISTON SCHOOL DISTRICT 8R 

HARKENRIDER CENTER PROPERTY LEASE 
January 25, 2016 

The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is to outline general terms and conditions 
between Hermiston School District 8R (District) and the City of Hermiston (City) of the process for 
establishing a Final Agreement (Agreement) leading to a 50 year nominal lease on the District’s 1+/‐ acre 
parcel [Lot 1 of Tax Lot 13900 on Map 4N 28 11 CB] known as the Ridgeway Site (Site).  This MOU 
outlines the general responsibilities of each party leading up to the execution of the Agreement 
between both parties. 

As a requirement of the Community Development and Block Grant (CDBG), both parties acknowledge 
the following: 

“The recipient (City) cannot enter into any legal binding commitment to a particular site before the 
environmental review is complete.  Refer to Chapter 3 (CDBG Management Handbook) for more 
information on the Environmental Review Process.  However, an option agreement on a particular 
proposed site or property is allowable prior to completion of the environmental review IF the option 
agreement is subject to the determination by the recipient (City) of the desirability of the property for 
the project as a result of the completion of the environmental review, issuance of the Release Of 
Funds by the state and the cost of the option is a nominal portion of the purchase price.” 

The City intends to utilize Site for the development of a new Senior Center.  To establish an initial 
understanding of good will for negotiations, this MOU presents broad terms of the future Lease; 
however, the breadth and detail of final terms and conditions are to be defined and determined 
between the signing parties.  Signature of this MOU provides assurance that it is the parties’ intent that 
continued expenditures of City funds on this project will result in a final, usable project.  Both parties 
acknowledge that ultimate execution of the Lease is subject to the successful completion of an 
environmental review and final determination of the desirability of the property for the project in 
addition to lease terms mutually agreed upon by both parties.  The City and District are under no 
obligation if the property fails to meet environmental, regulatory agency, or design requirements. 

District agrees to the following: 

 Pursue in good faith the issuance to the City of options to lease real property for a period of 50
years at an annual cost of $1.

 Permit the City, their agents, and certifying agencies access to the property as needed to
complete necessary environmental investigations, testing, survey work, soil sampling, test pits,
and other work required for preparation of the Agreement and for determination of desirability
of the property.

 Negotiate in good faith a Lease including items such as the following:

o Establish roles and responsibilities for the operation, maintenance, expenses, succession
plans, and insurance terms associated with the property.

o Consider the removal of easements relating to the alleys, roads, and water that may
interfere with the development of the Site.



I/CH/P&R/Harkenrider  

o Identify any potential uses of the property by the District for the duration of the Lease.
o Direct the preparation of lease documents for review and consideration.

The City agrees to the following: 

 Diligently pursue completion of the environmental review and other requirements necessary for
project funding.

 Coordinate with the District for access, minimize disturbance, and complete surface restoration
to the same condition as reasonably possible after the completion of environmental
investigations, testing, survey work, soil sampling, test pits, and other work required for
preparation of an Agreement and determination of desirability of the property.

 Cover the costs of recording deeds and other documents pertaining to lessor’s needs as
required.

 Negotiate in good faith a Lease including items such as the following:

o Establish roles and responsibilities for the operation, maintenance, expenses, succession

plans, and insurance terms associated with the property.

o Potential uses of the Site by the District for the duration of the Lease.

The terms as outlined herein are agreed to by both parties. This MOU provides each party with 
assurance that both parties intend to follow through with their responsibilities as outlined herein.  

Byron D. Smith, City Manager  Wade Smith, Deputy Superintendent  
City of Hermiston, Oregon  Hermiston School District 8R 

By__________________________  By____________________________ 

Date ________________________  Date _________________________ 
1‐30‐16 


	060816pc for packet
	The hearing is to consider a request from the City of Hermiston for a variance from §157.026 (D)(1) of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances which establishes front yard setback requirements in a (R-2) Duplex Residential zone and from §157.137 which establ...
	A. Planner comments

	05-11-16pc
	Staff Report PC June Cond Use and Variance
	Exhibit A Conditional Use Findings of Fact
	Exhibit B Variance Findings of Fact
	Property Map
	2016-05-24 CUP_PROPOSED SITE PLAN
	CUP_SCHEMATIC ELEVATIONS_1
	CUP_SCHEMATIC ELEVATIONS_2
	REVISED FIRST FLOOR_2016-04-06
	REVISED BASEMENT PLAN_2016-04-06
	cond use app signed
	maj var app signed
	SD SITE PLAN
	Owner Authorization_Lease Option MOU 1-2016 (2)



